
 

1 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
The ANNUAL MEETING of the MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held 
in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Tiverton on Wednesday, 20 May 2015 at 
7.00 pm 
 
ALL MEMBERS of the COUNCIL are summoned to attend for the purposes of 
transacting the business specified in the Agenda which is set out below:   
 
[The next meeting is scheduled to be held in Tiverton on Wednesday, 15 
July 2015 at 6.00 pm] 
 

 
KEVIN FINAN 
Chief Executive 
 
12 May 2015 
 
Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior 
to any discussion which may take place 
 
Father Rae, Priest for St James Catholic Church, Tiverton will lead the Council 

in prayer. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1   Chairman of the Council   

To elect the Chairman of the Council for the year 2015/16 
 

2   Apologies   
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

3   Minutes - 29 April 2015  (Pages 5 - 18) 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of Council on 
29 April 2015 
 
The Council is reminded that only those Members present at the 
previous meeting should vote and, in doing so, should be influenced 
only by seeking to ensure that the minutes are an accurate record. 
 

4   Vice Chairman of the Council   
To appoint the Vice Chairman of the Council for the year 2015/16 
 

5   Leader of the Council   
To elect the Leader of the Council for a 4 year period. 
 

6   Chairman of Scrutiny   
To elect the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee for the year 2015/16 
 

7   Appointment of Committees, Sub Committees, Working Groups 

Public Document Pack



 

2 

and other Internal Bodies   
Allocation and schedules to follow 
 
It is recommended: 
 
(a) that the Council approve the allocation of seats on Committees 
and other Council Bodies as shown on the schedule; 
 
(b) that Members be appointed to Committees in accordance with 
the names notified (see sheet attached) to the Chief Executive by each 
of the Political Groups represented on the Council, to give effect to the 
approved allocation of seats  in (a) above; 
 
(c) that Members also be appointed to Working Groups and other 
Internal Bodies in accordance with the names notified (see sheet 
attached) to the  Chief Executive by each of the Political Groups 
represented on the Council, to give effect to the approved allocation of 
seats in (a) above; 
 
(d) that the Chief Executive be authorised to make changes to 
membership of Committees, Working Groups and other Internal Bodies 
as may be notified to him from time to time by the relevant Political 
Group to which those seats have been allocated by the Council; 
 
(e) that the appointments to seats remaining to be filled by 
ungrouped Members shall be made at this meeting. 
 

8   Appointment to Outside Bodies 2015/16  (Pages 19 - 20) 
To consider the list attached. 
 

9   Scheme of Delegations  (Pages 21 - 72) 
To agree the existing scheme of delegations as set out in Part 3 of the 
Constitution. (The Scheme of Delegation sets out the levels of decision 
making within the Council, outlining those to be made by Council, the 
Cabinet, individual Cabinet Members, those Committees with regulatory 
functions and officers). 
 

10   Programme of Meetings   
To approve the programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the 
year 2015/16:- 

 

15 July 2015   6 January 2016 
 9 September 2015  24 February 2016 
 4 November 2015  27 April 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press 
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not 
to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as 
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting 
and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who 
may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film 
proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member Services Officer in 
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.  
 
Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to 
discussion. Lift access to the Council Chamber on the first floor of the building is 
available from the main ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair 
access, are also available. There is time set aside at the beginning of the 
meeting to allow the public to ask questions. 
 
An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid 
or using a transmitter. If you require any further information, or 
 
If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large 
print) please contact Sally Gabriel on: 
Tel: 01884 234229 
Fax:  
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council – 29 April 2015 66 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the COUNCIL held on 29 April 2015 at 6.00 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors  

Mrs H Bainbridge, E J Berry, M D Binks, 
Mrs D L Brandon, R J Chesterton, 
Mrs F J Colthorpe, D R Coren, N V Davey, 
W J Daw, R M Deed, J M Downes, 
C J Eginton, R Evans, A V G Griffiths, 
P H D Hare-Scott, P J Heal, 
Mrs L J Holloway, T G Hughes, 
Mrs B M Hull, D J Knowles, M R Lee, 
M A Lucas, E G  Luxton, R F Radford, 
Mrs J Roach, F R Rosamond, C R Slade, 
T W Snow, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires, 
R L Stanley, Mrs M E Turner, N A Way, 
P F Williams, K D Wilson, Mrs N Woollatt 
and R Wright 
 

Apologies  
Councillors Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs S Griggs, 

D F Pugsley and Mrs J Rendle 
 

 
 

136 Apologies  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs S Griggs, D F 
Pugsley and Mrs J R Rendle. 
 

137 Minutes (00-01-45)  
 
The minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 25 February 2015 were agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

138 Chairman's Announcements (00-02-03)  
 
The Chairman informed Members that: 
 

 prior to the meeting he had presented a Long Service Award to Richard Keith-
Hill who had completed 25 years service with the District Council.   

 

 Councillor P F Williams (Lead Member for Member Development) had 
presented him with the South West Charter for Member Development which 
he had received on behalf of the Council and he thanked those involved in the 
work of gaining the Charter. 

 
139 Public Question Time  

 
There were no members of the public present. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Council – 29 April 2015 67 

 
140 Petitions  

 
There were no petitions from members of the public. 
 

141 Notices of Motions (00-03-08)  
 
(1) Motion 515 (Councillor Mrs N Woollatt – 20 January 2015) 
 
The following motion had been referred to the Managing the Environment Policy 
Development Group for consideration and report: 
 
That this Council: 
 
1.    Bans the sale or use of sky lanterns when issuing licences for open-air events 
 
2.     Bans the release of sky lanterns from MDDC property 
 
3.    Urges Devon County Council to consider a similar ban as at (2.) on its property 
 
The Managing the Environment Policy Development Group at its meeting on 10 
March considered the proposal.   Following consideration of the views of the Group 
and in accordance with Procedure Rule 15.6(a) Councillor Mrs N Woollatt had 
requested that her motion be altered to read as follows: 
 
This Council: 
 

a) Provide advice and guidance to organisers of events and changes could be 
made to guidance notes to require applicants to provide information regarding 
the sale and release of lanterns at events; 

b) Uses the Licensing regime to promote a voluntary ban on the use of lanterns; 
c) Bans the release of sky lanterns from MDDC property; 
d) Urges Devon County Council to consider a similar ban as at (c) on its 

property. 
 
The Policy Development Group had considered the revised proposal and 
recommended that it be supported. 
 
Following discussion, and upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to 
have been CARRIED. 
 
(2)  Motion 514 (Councillor Mrs J Roach – 19 January 2015) 
 
The following motion had been referred to the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy 
Development Group for consideration and report: 
 
That this Council considers and investigates the possibility of applying to the 
Secretary of State to transfer Charlton Lodge to Mid Devon District Council (Localism 
Act Sect 15) to enable Mid Devon District Council to provide a scheme similar to the 
Abundant Life Project being run at Dartington. 
 

Page 6



 

Council – 29 April 2015 68 

The Decent and Affordable Homes Group at its meeting on 17 March considered the 
proposal and had recommended that it be supported. 
 
Following debate, Councillor Mrs J Roach MOVED in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 18.4: 
 
“THAT the vote in respect of this item shall be by Roll Call”. 
 
A roll call of Members present at the meeting was then taken. 
 
Those voting FOR the MOTION: Councillors Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, E J Berry, 
Mrs D L Brandon, R J Chesterton, Mrs F J Colthorpe, D R Coren, N V Davey, W J 
Daw, R M Deed, J M Downes, C J Eginton, R Evans, A V G Griffiths, P H D Hare-
Scott, P J Heal, Mrs L J Holloway, T G Hughes, Mrs B M Hull, D J Knowles, M R Lee, 
M A Lucas, E G Luxton, R F Radford, Mrs J Roach, F J Rosamond, C R Slade, T W 
Snow, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires, R L Stanley, Mrs M E Turner, N A Way, P F 
Williams, K D Wilson, Mrs N Woollatt and R Wright. 
 
Those voting AGAINST the MOTION: None. 
 
The MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 
The Council had before it questions* submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 12.2(1) together with a response from the Chairman 
of the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group. 
 
Notes: 
i) Questions and responses circulated at the meeting, copy attached to signed 

minutes; 
ii) Councillor Mrs F J Colthorpe declared a personal interest as two of the homes 

mentioned were in her County Division and she had received correspondence 
regarding this matter; 

iii) Councillors E J Berry, R F Radford, Mrs M E Squires and N A Way declared 
personal interests as they had received correspondence regarding this matter. 
 

 
(3) Motion 516 (Councillor Mrs J Roach – 22 January 2015) 
 
The following motion had been referred to the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy 
Development Group for consideration and report 
 
“That this Council resolves to investigate the possibility of acquiring Charlton Lodge, 
Orchard Lea and Bampton residential Homes in order to meet unmet housing needs 
in this district.”  
 
The Decent and Affordable Homes Group at its meeting on 17 March considered the 
proposal and had recommended that it be supported. 
 
Following debate, Councillor Mrs J Roach MOVED in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 18.4: 
 
“THAT the vote in respect of this item shall be by Roll Call”. 

Page 7



 

Council – 29 April 2015 69 

 
A roll call of Members present at the meeting was then taken. 
 
Those voting FOR the MOTION: Councillors Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, E J Berry, 
Mrs D L Brandon, R J Chesterton, Mrs F J Colthorpe, D R Coren, N V Davey, W J 
Daw, R M Deed, J M Downes, C J Eginton, R Evans, A V G Griffiths, P H D Hare-
Scott, P J Heal, Mrs L J Holloway, T G Hughes, Mrs B M Hull, D J Knowles, M R Lee, 
M A Lucas, E G Luxton, R F Radford, Mrs J Roach, F J Rosamond, C R Slade, T W 
Snow, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires, R L Stanley, Mrs M E Turner, N A Way, P F 
Williams, K D Wilson, Mrs N Woollatt and R Wright. 
 
Those voting AGAINST the MOTION: None. 
 
The MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 
The Council had before it questions* submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 12.2(1) together with a response from the Chairman 
of the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group. 
 
The MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 
Notes: 
i) Questions and responses circulated at the meeting, copy attached to signed 

minutes; 
ii) Councillor Mrs F J Colthorpe declared a personal interest as two of the homes 

mentioned were in her County Division and she had received correspondence 
regarding this matter; 

iii) Councillors E J Berry, R F Radford, Mrs M E Squires and N A Way declared 
personal interests as they had received correspondence regarding this matter. 

iv) Councillor R L Stanley declared a personal interest as he had been in 
discussions regarding Barnfield; 

v) Councillor K D Wilson declared a personal interest as he had worked at 
Orchard Lea and Barnfield. 

 
 

(4)  Motion 518 (Councillor M D Binks – 24 February 2015) 
 
The Council had before it a MOTION submitted for the first time: 
 
That this Council wishes to express its concerns to the Minister of State for Culture 
and the Digital Economy, about the slow rate of installation of High Speed Broadband 
to large rural areas of Mid Devon, as without this everyday need, especially to 
farmers and other rural businesses, our local economy will not flourish and rural 
isolation will not be reduced. 
 
The MOTION was MOVED by Councillor M D Binks and seconded by Councillor W J 
Daw. 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 13.4, the Chairman of the Council had ruled that 
this Motion to be dealt with at this meeting. 
 
Following debate, and upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to have 
been CARRIED. 

Page 8



 

Council – 29 April 2015 70 

 
Note: Councillor K D Wilson requested that his abstention from voting be recorded. 
 
(5) Motion 519 (Councillor M D Binks – 24 February 2015) 
 
The Council had before it a MOTION submitted for the first time: 
 
That this Council wishes to express apprehension about the consultation process 
regarding the future of Crediton Hospital, and would like to relay those concerns to 
the Minister for Health, hopefully ensuring that he will rigorously scrutinise all the 
evidence given in that consultation process, therefore ensuring that a fair and 
equitable decision is arrived at.  
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 13.4, the Chairman of the Council has decided to 
allow this Motion (if moved and seconded) to be dealt with at this meeting. 
 
The MOTION was MOVED by Councillor M D Binks and seconded by Councillor C R 
Slade. 
 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.6(a) Councillor M D Binks requested that his 
motion be altered  to read as follows: 
 
That this Council wishes to express apprehension about the consultation process 
regarding the future of Crediton Hospital, and would like to relay those concerns to 
the Secretary of State for  Health, ensuring that he will rigorously scrutinise all the 
evidence given in that consultation process, therefore ensuring that a fair and 
equitable decision is arrived at.  
 
Following debate, and upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to have 
been CARRIED. 
 
(6) Motion 520 (Councillor Mrs J Roach – 11 March 2015) 
 
The Council had before it a MOTION submitted for the first time: 
 
That this Council resolves to write to the Secretary of State for DCLG to ask that 
when setting out national planning policy the following issues are taken in to 
consideration. 
 
There is evidence that developers are now buying up old properties in villages and 
seeking permission to redevelop those sites to obtain a maximum return. By 
demolishing the existing building and replacing it with more than one house, or 
alternatively a much larger house, they are creating major problems for existing 
neighbours. 
 
The first concern is building too close to boundary walls or undermining those walls. 
It appears that any redress in these cases is via the Party Wall Act and has to be 
dealt with by a civil action.  This entails the neighbour taking legal action which can 
be long drawn out and costly to fund just to protect their property. If they do not have 
the funds then they cannot take action. Many people are reluctant to take legal action 
or are unaware that they could take this route. 

Page 9



 

Council – 29 April 2015 71 

 
The second concern is about rights of access. 
It is not uncommon in villages for access to have been taken for granted over 
hundreds of years, with no thought given to ensuring it was protected in law. 
Development of the land can interfere with historic rights and those who enjoyed 
access have to resort to civil action at their own expense to maintain their rights. 
Some of those properties have been passed down through family members without 
the access rights being formalised. 
 
The MOTION was MOVED by Councillor Mrs J Roach and seconded by Councillor 
Mrs N Woollatt. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 13.4, the Chairman of the Council had ruled that 
this MOTION STAND REFERRED to the Cabinet. 
 

142 Cabinet - Report - Meeting held on 5 March 2015 (00-59-00)  
 
The Leader presented the report of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 5 March 2014. 

 
Arising thereon:- 
 
(1) Pay Policy (Min 119) 
 
The Leader MOVED, seconded by Councillor Mrs B M Hull:- 
 
“THAT the recommendation of the Cabinet as set out in Minute 119 be 
ADOPTED”. 
 

Upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 

143 Cabinet - Report - Meeting held on 2 April 2015 (1-00-53)  
 
The Leader presented the report of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 2 April 2015. 
 
Arising thereon:- 
 
(1) Affordable Housing Projects (Min 129) 
 
The Leader MOVED, seconded by Councillor R L Stanley:- 
 
“THAT the recommendation of the Cabinet as set out in Minute 129 be 
ADOPTED”. 
 

Upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 
Note: Councillor Mrs J Roach declared a personal interest in Minute 127 as Chair of 
the Group proposing to renovate the Silverton Toilets. 
 

144 Scrutiny Committee - Report - Meeting held on 27 February 2015 (1-10-12)  
 
The Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 27 February 2015. 
 

Page 10



 

Council – 29 April 2015 72 

145 Scrutiny Committee - Report - Meeting held on 16 March 2015 (1-10-36)  
 
The Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 16 March 2015. 
 

146 Scrutiny Committee - Report - meeting held on 13 April 2015 (1-11-06)  
 
The Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 13 April 2015. 
 
(1)  Planning Policy Procedures (Min 175) 
 
The Chairman MOVED, seconded by Councillor Mrs L J Holloway:- 
 
“THAT the recommendation of the Scrutiny Committee as set out in Minute 175 
be NOTED”. 

 
Following discussion and upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to 
have been CARRIED. 
 
The Council had before it questions* submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 12.2(1) together with a response from the Chairman 
of the Scrutiny Committee 
 
Notes: Questions and responses circulated at the meeting, copy attached to signed 
minutes. 
 
 

147 Audit Committee - Report - Meeting -  held on 24 March 2015 (1-15-02)  
 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 24 March 2015. 
 

148 Managing the Environment Policy Development Group - Report - Meeting held 
on 10- March 2015 (1-18-11)  
 
The Chairman of the Managing the Environment Policy Development Group 
presented the report of the meeting of the Group held on 10 March 2015. 
 

149 Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group - Meeting - held on 
17 March  2015 (1-20-07)  
 
The Chairman of the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group 
presented the report of the meeting of the Group held on 17 March 2015. 
 
The Council had before it questions* submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 12.2(1) together with a response from the Chairman 
of the Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group. 
 
Note: Questions and responses circulated at the meeting, copy attached to signed 
minutes; 
 

Page 11



 

Council – 29 April 2015 73 

 
150 Community Well-Being Policy Development Group - Report - Meeting held on 

24 March 2015 (1-21-06)  
 
The Chairman of the Community Well Being Policy Development Group presented 
the report of the meeting of the Group held on 24 March 2015.  
 
 

151 Planning Committee - Report - Meeting held on 4 March  2015 (1-21-56)  
 
The Chairman of the Planning Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 4 March 2015. 
 

152 Planning Committee - Report - Meeting 18 March 2015 (1-25-33)  
 
The Chairman of the Planning Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 18 March 2015. 
 

153 Planning Committee - Report - Meeting - 1 April 015 (1-26-11)  
 
The Chairman of the Planning Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 1 April 2015. 
 

154 Planning Committee - Report - Meeting held on 22 April  2015 (1-26-49)  
 
The Chairman of the Planning Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 22 April 2015. 
 

155 Standards Committee - Report - Meeting  - held on 11 March 2015 (1-29-32)  
 
The Chairman of the Standards Committee presented the report of the meeting of 
the Committee held on 11 March 2015. 
 

156 Standards Committee - Report - Meeting held on 25 March 2015 (1-29-53)  
 
The Chairman of the Standards Committee presented the report of the meeting of 
the Committee held on 25 March 2015. 
 

157 Standards Committee - Report - Meeting held on 15 AprilL 2015 (1-30-19)  
 
The Chairman of the Standards Committee presented the report of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 15 April 2015 
 
(1) Updates from Constitution Working Group – (Min 76) 
 
The Chairman MOVED, seconded by Councillor P F Williams 
 
“THAT the recommendation of the Standards Committee as set out in Minute 76 
be ADOPTED”. 

 
Following discussion and upon a vote being taken, the MOTION was declared to 
have been CARRIED. 

Page 12



 

Council – 29 April 2015 74 

 
 

158 Questions  
 
Questions submitted under Procedure Rule 12.2 had been dealt with earlier in the 
meeting.  
 

159 Independent Remuneration Panel Report - April 2015 (1-32-57)  
 
The Council had before it a report * of the Head of Communities and Governance 
informing Members that the current Members Allowances Scheme expires when the 
District Council election takes place in May 2015, there is therefore a need to make 
recommendations for a scheme to be in place following the election. 
 
The Chief Executive outlined the content of the report. 
 
The Chairman of the Council MOVED, THAT: 
 

a) The current scheme with no changes be extended for a period of 3 months 
from the day after the District Council election until 31 July 2015. 
 

b) An interim scheme be implemented (which may include some minor changes 
to the current scheme and which will be presented to full Council for 
consideration on 15 July 2015) for the period between 1 August 2015 and 31 
July 2016. 

 
c) A fundamental review be undertaken of Mid Devon’s Members Allowances 

Scheme between August 2015 and Spring 2016 with a report presenting the 
Panel’s views and findings coming before Council in July 2016. This will 
recommend a scheme of allowances from August 2016 onwards.  

 
The MOTION was declared to have been CARRIED. 
 
Note:  
 
i)  Councillor T W Snow requested that his abstention from voting be recorded; 
ii) *Report previously circulated copy attached to minutes. 
 
 

160 Annual Reports of Audit Committee, Scrutiny Committee and the Policy 
Development Groups (1-34-44)  
 
The Chairmen of the Audit Committee and the Scrutiny Committee, and the 
Chairmen of the Managing the Environment, the Decent and Affordable Homes and 
the Community Well-Being Policy Development Groups presented their Annual 
Reports* to the Council. 
 
Note: *Reports previously circulated, copy attached to signed minutes. 
 

161 Six Monthly Briefing from the Leader (1-35-24)  
 
The Leader of the Council addressed the Council on a number of issues: 

Page 13



 

Council – 29 April 2015 75 

 

 The current financial position: the finalising of the General Fund accounts for 
2014/15 was underway with an estimated overspend of £150k, taking into 
consideration the redundancy costs and the relocation of the Waste Service, 
other services had underspends in the last financial year.  There was a 
reduced pay bill equivalent to 40 full time positions.  Revenue collection was 
currently at a high level and the authority had maintained a 0% increase on its 
portion of Council Tax. 

 Housing: for the first time in decades, the authority had built new Council 
houses. 

 Waste and recycling: the move to a new site had proved successful; a new 
recycling scheme would be put in place in the autumn with the inclusion of all 
plastics. 

 Leisure: a lot of money had been invested in the leisure centres, increased 
income had been realised. 

 He thanked Members for their contribution over the past four years, all of 
whom had been committed to the role and he named those not seeking re-
election and wished them well. 

 
162 Questions to Cabinet Members (1-40-56)  

 
Councillor Mrs N Woollatt asked the Cabinet Member for Environment about waste 
collections and highlighted an article in the Gazette which referred to rubbish put out 
on the streets on Good Friday.  She asked whether action would be taken against 
people who put their rubbish out early?  Had the changes to waste collection on bank 
Holidays been publicised, should there not have been a reminder on social media? 
 
The Cabinet Member stated that the Council did advertise changes to collection 
times on the web site and charts distributed each year highlighted the change to 
collection dates, these were also published in Mid Devon Talk.  He would look into 
the matter regarding the use of social media. 
 
Councillor K D Wilson speaking to the Leader highlighted the issue of poor 
communication between officers and Members and outlined examples where he felt 
he had not been included.   
 
The Leader stated that he felt communication had improved, although he felt it could 
be better.  He stated he would do what he could if re-elected. 
 
Mrs J Roach speaking to the Cabinet Member for the Environment asked the 
following questions: 
 
Was the Multi Storey Car Park definitely going to incorporate a Premier Inn? 
Would the Shopmobility centre remain in place? 
Where had the £1 for 5 hours parking sign gone? 
Ward Members need to be informed about any issues taking place in their Wards? 
 
The Cabinet Member replied stating that he had been informed that the parking 
banner had blown off in the wind and that he would look into the matter.  There was 
no decision regarding the Premier Inn, he understood that discussions were still 
taking place.  There was no threat to the Shopmobility centre at the present time. 
 

Page 14



 

Council – 29 April 2015 76 

The Leader stated that communication with Members was necessary. 
 
Councillor Mrs Roach speaking to the Cabinet Member for Housing raised an issue 
regarding the fitting of a kitchen in her ward and that the residents had been informed 
that it may take 3 weeks to fit, this would cause unnecessary problems for the 
tenants.   
 
The Cabinet Member asked that he be forwarded the details of the case and that he 
would look into the matter. 
 
Councillor Mrs M Turner asked the Chief Executive about the Town Hall and whether 
the public had been consulted on its future. 
 
The Chief Executive explained that space had been made in Phoenix House 
following staff reduction which had allowed for an additional space for meeting 
rooms.  There would be the capacity to contain large numbers in a meeting room, 
which could well host the Planning Committee.  Whether to hold all meetings in 
Phoenix House would be a decision for the Council to make in the future. 
 

163 Members' Business (2-00-18)  
 
Councillor K D Wilson suggested that the blind in the Council Chamber be mended. 
 
Councillor C R Slade highlighted the Devon Expo event that was taking place at 
Matford in Exeter the following day; the Mid Devon Business Forum and the 
Community Development Service would be involved. 
 

164 Invitation for retiring Members to address the Council (2-03-04)  
 
The Chairman thanked those Members not seeking re-election for their work and 
invited them to address the Council; 
 
Councillors Mrs D L Brandon, Mrs L J Holloway, M A Lucas, P F Williams, M R Lee, 
A V G Griffith and Mrs M E Turner spoke. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 8.32 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WRITTEN QUESTIONS – FULL COUNCIL – 29 APRIL 2015 

1. MOTION NUMBER 514 

Question submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach and response of the Chairman of the 

Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group 

Have any investigations taken place to establish whether it would be possible to apply to the 

Secretary of State for such a transfer? 

RESPONSE 

No investigations have been carried out, the PDG were supportive of investigating the idea 

but officer resources would not be expended until the principle had been agreed. If the 

motion is supported by council, officers will then review the legislative provisions for the 

transfer and delegation of functions, their relevance to the establishment of an Abundant Life 

scheme and the implications of establishing such a scheme generally. 

2. MOTION NUMBER 516 

Question submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach and response of the Chairman of the 

Decent and Affordable Homes Policy Development Group 

In the view of the MDDC Officer responsible for the implementation of the Localism Act is 

such an asset transfer a possibility?  Alternatively, has advice been sought as to whether 

such a transfer is possible? 

RESPONSE 

I am advised by the Chief Executive that the motion as discussed uses the term to ‘acquire’ 

rather than to achieve an asset transfer. As such officers would seek to approach Devon 

County Council regarding an acquisition which would be based on the full market value for 

these properties as and when they are declared redundant by Devon County Council. 

The Localism Act does not provide a mechanism for this council to achieve an asset transfer 

in the view of the Chief Executive. 

3. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MINUTE 175 

Question submitted by Councillor Mrs J Roach and response of the Chairman the 

Scrutiny Committee 

There is a problem re minute 175 of the Scrutiny committee. 

Two votes were taken, the first was on the principle of the recommendation, this was passed 

(I think) unanimously. The second vote was on whether to refer the matter to Cabinet or 

Council. It was this vote that was carried on my casting vote. 

Is this minute correct? 

RESPONSE 

Page 17



Minute 175 is correct in recording the final outcome of the discussion on this issue, a vote of 

5 to 4 with the chairman’s casting vote.  

What is not sufficiently highlighted is that it was the unanimous view of the Scrutiny 

Committee to express disappointment at the report of the Planning Policy Working Group not 

being received. The vote recorded at Minute 175 reflects the difference of opinion on 

whether to recommend the decision to council rather than the cabinet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 18



OB List May 2015 
 

Outside Body Appointments 2015/16 
 

Outside Body Representative/s 
Appointment 

Length 

Blackdown Hills ANOB Partnership  Annual 

Broadpath Landfill Liaison Committee  Annual 

Business Forum Mid Devon Leader Annual 

Culm Valley Children’s Monitoring Group  Annual 

 
Citizens Advice Bureau – Torridge, Mid Devon & 
Bude 
 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

Community Safety Partnership 
Cabinet Member for 
Community Well-Being 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 
 

 
Council for the Protection of Rural England 
Devon Area Executive Committee 
 

 Bi-annual 

Cullompton Town Team 
2 Members 

 Annual 

 
Cullompton Traffic Issues & Environment Working 
Group 
 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

Dartmoor National Park Authority Forum 
2 Members 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

 
Devon Authorities Waste Reduction & Recycling 
Committee 
 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

Devon Districts Forum Leader Annual 

Devon Historic Buildings Trust  Annual 

Devon and Exeter Rail Project Working Party 
2 Members 

 Annual 

General Assembly of LGA Leader 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 
 

INVOLVE – Voluntary Action in Mid Devon  Annual 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



OB List May 2015 
 

Mid Devon Children’s Centres Advisory Board  
4 years until 
2019 

 
Mid Devon Community Safety Partnership 
 

- Exe Local Action Group 
- Creedy Local Action Group 
- Culm Local Action Group 

 

 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

 
Mid Devon Highways and Traffic Orders 
Committee 
(2 Members) 
 

 Bi-annual 

Most Sparsely Populated Councils Group  
4 years until 
May 2019 
 

 
Museums Libraries and Archives South West 
(consultation only – no meetings) 
 

 Annual 

 
South Western Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust 
 

 May 2019 

South West Councils Leader Annual 

South West Councils Employers Panel 
Cabinet Member for the 
Working Environment and 
Support Services 

Annual 

Tiverton Adventure Playground Committee  
4 years until 
May 2019 
 

 
Tiverton & District Community Transport 
Association 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community Well-Being 

 

 
Tiverton & Mid Devon Museum Trust Executive 
Committee 
 

 
4 years until 
May 2019 

 

Page 20



Part 3 - Responsibility for 

Functions 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 AND 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 

2007 
 
 

I, ……………………….., Leader of Mid Devon District Council, in accordance with S.14 of the 

Local Government Act 2000 as amended by Part 3 of the Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007 confirm the arrangements for Responsibility For Functions 

contained in Part 3 of the Mid Devon District Council Constitution, November 2007, 

including all the arrangements for delegation of functions to the Cabinet, the arrangements 

of functions of the Cabinet members and the Scheme of Delegation to officers. 

 
 
 
 
Signed: 
 
Date:  

Page 22



The Council’s Committee Structure 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Full Council 

 

Bi Monthly 

Cabinet 

Leader + 6 Members 

Monthly 

Scrutiny Committee 

12 Members 

Monthly 

Policy Development Group 

Managing the Environment 

9 Members 

Bi monthly 

Policy Development Group 

Decent and Affordable Homes 

9 Members 

Bi monthly 

Policy Development Group 

Community Well-Being 

9 Members 

Bi monthly 

Standards Committee 

9 Members 

As and when  

necessary 

 

Licensing Regulatory 

15 Members 

As and when necessary 

Licensing Sub 

Committee  

3 Members 

As and when necessary 

Licensing 

15 Members 

As and when 

necessary 

Planning 

15 Members 

Monthly 

Appointments Panel 

5 Members 

As and when necessary 

Audit Committee 
7 Members 

Bi Monthly 

Standards Sub-

Committee 

3 Members 

As and when necessary 

 

Licensing Regulatory 

Sub Committee 

3 Members As and 

when necessary 

 

Page 23



Scheme of Delegations 
INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Legally a local authority depends upon a series of statutes which in some cases 

give it a power (ie a discretion) to do something – or – in others – a duty to carry 

out that function or service.  Each power or duty is often made subject to various 

limits as to just how it is to be exercised. 

1.2 Because of this statutory foundation for the work of local councils, it is important 

that we are always clear as to which statute we are using to achieve our purposes.  

Unless we make that clear then it is difficult, if not impossible, for the community 

to hold us to account. 

1.3 Apart from “what and how”, we also need to make clear, for transparency and 

accountability purposes – “who” it is within the Council – that has the power to do 

something.  This means that we must produce a “Delegation Scheme” describing 

these formal responsibilities. 

2.0 Who? 

2.1 To help understand what follows, there are a number of levels of decision making 

under our Constitution.  Each of these is reflected by the tables which follow later 

in this section. 

2.2 First, is full Council itself.  Full Council retains a range of higher level decisions 

– many relating to our overall strategies – or to the setting of our annual budget 

and of council tax.  Some of these functions can legally only be undertaken at this 

highest level.  With others, it has been this Council’s own choice to do so (local 

choice functions). 

2.3 Next, is the Cabinet.  Under the Local Government Act 2000 the great majority 

of the Council’s decision making must only be carried out by or through the 

Cabinet – either meeting together – or in some cases – to be decided on an 

individual basis.    The Act prevents other councillors making such decisions. 

2.4 Then – as qualified above – are the individual Cabinet Councillors – where 

powers may be expressly delegated to them. 

2.5 Next comes a group of “regulatory functions”.  Broadly, these are roles where 

the Council has the task of controlling the activities of individuals – often on an 

application by application basis.  To deal with these detailed controls, parliament 

decided that special committees should be retained – outside the Cabinet.  In our 

case this means we have a Planning Committee, a Licensing Committee and a 

Licensing Regulatory Committee made up of elected members and which meet in 

public  to hear and make decisions on the individual cases brought before them. 

2.6 Finally are the officers.  The great bulk of day to day operational decision making 

is delegated by the Council or the Cabinet or the Planning Committee to our 

professional staff.  They need these powers so as to enable them to provide the 

services of the Council in the most economic, efficient and effective way. 

3.0 What? 

3.1 Attached are a number of tables setting out the broad areas of our statutory powers 

and the activities and functions we are involved in. 

3.2 Section 1 is a list of those matters which remain either with the full Council itself 

for decision or which are within its control – because the 2000 Act either requires 

Page 24



it or permits it.  The section also shows to whom these powers have been 

delegated (if at all) – whether to a Committee or to an officer. 

3.3 Section 2 sets out those powers and duties which the Act excludes from Cabinet 

decision making – such as Planning, Licensing and Licensing Regulatory issues.  

These are listed as delegated to a Committee or to an officer with any limits on 

those delegations also included. 

3.4 Section 3 lists those powers and duties which are ones which only the Cabinet can 

deal with – itself – or through officers or its committees.  This covers the great 

majority of our powers and duties – with most operational decision making 

continuing to be delegated to the officers under Section 5 below. 

3.5 This part also lists functions across a series of Cabinet Functions.  These reflect 

the current responsibilities of each of the current members of the Cabinet for the 

setting of the overall direction of these services. 

3.6 Section 4 describes the delegation arrangements to councillors and officers.  This 

part also includes individual delegation to Cabinet Councillors.  This will only be 

enforced following a specific resolution of Council.  As with our current 

Delegation Scheme, most of the operational decision making under these powers 

and duties is delegated on to the officers. 

3.7 Section 5 describes the power and duties that are delegated to officers. 

 

Page 25



SECTION 1 

The Powers Of The Council 
4.0 The functions statutorily reserved to the Council are set out below in column 1.  

Column 2 shows who else is involved – either as having full statutory powers 

delegated to them or as being the source of a recommendation to full Council. 

4.1 Where the power is shown as delegated to an officer, then that officer shall also 

have the power to re-delegate that power to another officer of the authority or to 

refer or to remit to another regulatory body of the Council for it to decide. 

 

 Function If delegated – then to Whom? 

1 To set the Policy Framework and the 

Budget within which the Cabinet must 

operate.  (Both these terms are defined 

below) 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Cabinet 

2 In a limited range of cases – to make 

decisions about the discharge of a 

“Cabinet function”.  This applies only to 

those cases where the decision maker is 

considering an issue – which is not only:- 

(a) covered by the Policy 

Framework or the Budget, but also - 

(b) where the decision maker is 

inclined to make it in a manner which:- 

 would be contrary to that 

Framework, or 

 would be contrary to/or not 

wholly in accordance with the 

Budget 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Cabinet 

3 To exercise – through delegated powers 

– those “regulatory functions” (these are 

listed in detail at Section 2 of this part of 

the Constitution) which must not be 

within the remit of the Cabinet:- 

(a) Development Control;   Building 

Control 

 

 

(b) Licensing and other Regulatory 

 Functions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Committee;   

Chief Executive 

Head of  Planning and Regeneration; 

 

Licensing Committee; 

Regulatory Committee; 

Chief Executive; 

Head of HR and Development 

 

 

Page 26



(c) Food Safety 

 

 

 

(d) Health & Safety at Work (this 

 relates only to those functions 

 which the Council exercises 

 other than as employer) 

 

 

(e) Electoral services 

 

 

 

(f) Staffing matters (other than 

 those dealt with in the 

 Constitution under Standing 

 Orders as to Employment of 

 Officers) 

 

(g) Ceremonial and those 

 Miscellaneous matters 

Chief Executive; 

Head of HR & Development 

 

 

Chief Executive  

Head of HR & Development 

 

 

 

Returning and Electoral Registration 

Officer  

 

 

Head of Paid Service (Chief 

Executive); 

Head of HR and Development; 

 

 

Council 

4 To agree and/or to amend the terms of 

reference of the Planning Committee, the 

Licensing Committee and the Regulatory 

Committee 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the relevant Committee 

5 To decide the number of seats to be 

allocated to each Party Group( or to 

independent councillors) in accordance 

with the “proportionality” rules in the 

Local Government & Housing Act 1989 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Monitoring Officer 

6 To confirm the appointment of the Head 

of Paid Service 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the relevant Appointments Panel set 

up for that purpose 

7 To appoint the Monitoring Officer and 

the Section 151 Officer 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Head of Paid Service 

8 To confirm the dismissal of the Head of 

Paid Service or of the Monitoring Officer 

or the Section 151 Officer 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the relevant Appointments  Panel set 

up for that purpose and the 

recommendation of an appointed 

Independent Person 

9 To elect the Leader of the Council Council – on the recommendation of 

the controlling political group or 

groups of the Council 

Page 27



10 To remove the Leader  Council – in accordance with the 

procedure in Article 7 

11 To adopt the Constitution and agree any 

major changes to it 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Standards Committee 

12 To approve any applications to the 

Secretary of State in respect of a Housing 

Land Transfer 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Cabinet 

13 To appoint and dismiss representatives to 

those outside bodies whose role is not 

closely linked to an Cabinet function 

The Chief Executive acting on the 

advice of the relevant Committee 

14 To adopt/modify a Members’ 

Allowances Scheme 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Independent Remuneration Panel 

15 To change the name of the area   Council 

16 To confer the title of honorary alderman Council 

17 To make, amend, revoke, re-enact or 

adopt bylaws and to promote or oppose 

the making of local legislation 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the Cabinet 

18 To adopt any plan or strategy (whether 

statutory or non-statutory) which the 

Council has decided should be 

undertaken by itself rather than by the 

Cabinet 

Council – on the recommendation of 

the relevant Committee 

19 To deal with any other matter which, by 

law, must be reserved to Council 

Council 

 

4.2 The Council’s Policy Framework is defined in Article 4 of the Constitution.  It 

consists of a series of important plans and strategies which form the basis for 

many of its services.  Each is a substantial document in itself which is regularly 

reviewed and updated.  They are not, therefore, included in this Constitution but 

current copies are always available at Phoenix House. 

4.3 The Budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different services and 

projects, proposed contingency funds, the Council Tax Base, setting the Council 

Tax and decisions relating to the control of the Council’s borrowing requirement, 

the control of its Capital Expenditure. 

4.4 Whilst decisions on the framing of the Budget itself are ones for the full Council, 

many of the operational issues relating to monitoring and to virement are 

delegated to either the Cabinet, potentially to Cabinet Councillors or to the 

officers – subject always to the approval of the Section 151 Officer. 

Page 28



SECTION 2 

Regulatory Powers Of The Council 
5.0 In order to carry out the Council’s “regulatory powers” the following Committees 

be constituted:- 

 Planning Committee – 15 members 

 Licensing Committee – 15 members 

 Licensing Regulatory Committee – 15 members 

5.1 The powers and duties of these committees are set out below:- 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Membership – Fifteen Members of the Authority 

Function 

To exercise quasi-judicial functions on behalf of the Council as set out below. 

Matters Delegated to this Committee 

 Planning and conservation functions relating to town and country planning and 

 development control and all matters concerning trees  

 To confirm and consider changes to the existing Scheme of Delegation to the Head of 

Planning and Regeneration 

 Conservation Policy 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Membership – Fifteen Members of the Authority 

Function 

To exercise quasi-judicial functions on behalf of the Council as set out below. 

Matters Requiring Submission to the Council 

 Statement of Licensing Policy under section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 Licensing Policy 

Matters Delegated to this Committee 

 Liquor, Gaming, Entertainment and Licensing; 

 Functions relating to licensing and registration as set out in Schedule 1 to the 

Functions Regulations.  

 To confirm the scheme of delegation of functions in the Guidance to the Licensing 

Act 2003 as set out below:  

Page 29



 

Matter to be dealt 

with 

Full 

Committee 

Sub-

Committee 

Officers 

Application for 

personal licence 

 If an objection 

made 

If no 

objection 

made 

Application for 

personal licence with 

unspent convictions 

 All cases  

Application for 

premises 

licence/club 

premises certificate 

 If a 

representation 

made 

If no 

represent-

ations made 

Application for 

provisional 

statement 

 If a 

representation 

made 

If no 

represent-

ations made 

Application to vary 

premises  

/licence/club 

premises certificate 

 If a 

representation 

is made 

If no 

represent-

ations made 

Application to vary 

designated premises 

supervisor 

 If a police 

objection 

All other 

cases 

Request to be 

removed as 

designated premises 

supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for 

transfer of premises 

 If a police 

objection 

All other 

cases 

Applications for 

interim authorities 

 If a police 

objection 

All other 

cases 

Application to 

review premises 

licence /club 

premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether 

a complaint is 

irrelevant, frivolous, 

vexatious, etc 

  All cases 

Decision to object  All cases  

Page 30



when local authority 

is a consultee and 

not the relevant 

authority considering 

the application 

Determination of a 

police objection to a 

temporary event 

notice 

 All cases  

 Functions permitted under the Gambling Act 2005 

Matter to be dealt 

with 

Full 

Council 

Sub-

Committee of 

Licensing 

Committee 

Officers 

Three year licensing 

Statement of 

Principles 

X   

Policy not to permit 

casinos 

X   

Fee Setting (when 

appropriate) 

  X 

Application for 

premises licences 

 Where 

representations 

have been 

received and 

not withdrawn 

Where no 

represent-

tations 

received / 

represent-

tations have 

been 

withdrawn 

Application for a 

variation to a licence 

 Where 

representations  

have been 

received and 

not withdrawn 

Where no 

represent-

tations 

received / 

represent-

tations have 

been 

withdrawn 

Application for a 

transfer of a licence 

 Where 

representations 

have been 

received from 

the 

Commission 

Where no 

represent-

tations 

received 

from the 

Commission 

Page 31



Application for a 

provisional statement 

 Where 

representations 

have been 

received and 

not withdrawn 

Where no 

represent-

tations 

received / 

represent-

tations have 

been 

withdrawn 

Review of a premises 

licence 

 X  

Application for club 

gaming / club 

machine permits 

 Where 

objections have 

been made 

(and) not 

withdrawn 

Where no 

objections 

made / 

objections 

have been 

withdrawn 

Cancellation of club 

gaming / club 

machine permits 

 X  

Applications for other 

permits 

  X 

Cancellation of 

licensed premises 

gaming machine 

permits 

  X 

Consideration of 

temporary use notice 

  X 

Decision to give a 

counter notice to a 

temporary use notice 

 X  

 

Page 32



 

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

Membership – Fifteen Members of the Authority 

Function 

To exercise quasi-judicial functions on behalf of the Council as set out below. 

Matters Requiring Submission to the Council 

None 

Matters Delegated to this Committee 

  Taxi, Private Hire and Miscellaneous Licensing 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 33



SECTION 3 

Cabinet Powers 
6.0 The majority of the decision making of the Council relates to areas which are 

defined as “Executive matters” within the 2000 Act and can therefore only be 

dealt with via the Cabinet.   

(a) The Cabinet meeting as a body can make Cabinet decisions; 

(b) So too can individual Cabinet Councillors.  Council will identify particular 

powers which should be taken by individual Cabinet Councillors; 

(c) The great majority of operation decision making within policy and the 

budget will, as before, be the responsibility of the officers – through the 

Delegation Scheme – subject to the limitations included here; 

(d) The need for both transparency and accountability require that decision 

making of this type under the Act needs to be carefully controlled and 

recorded and that all councillors together with the press and public have 

full access to those decisions – not only at the time – but also before and 

after – they are made; 

(e) Certain types of decisions – key decisions – have great levels of 

safeguards placed upon them and require (for instance) consultation with 

the Council’s Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee and Policy 

Development Groups before being progressed; 

(f) Those members who are not Cabinet Councillors cannot make those 

decisions; 

(g) Neither full Council nor Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee or Policy 

Development Groups can make Cabinet decisions. 

6.1 This Delegation Scheme has, therefore, been based on the following features:- 

(a) Most day to day operational decision making powers are delegated to the 

Council’s officers (see section 7.2); 

(b) the role of the Cabinet – meeting as a body – has been designed to avoid 

such operational decisions coming to it unless they are key decisions or 

are otherwise of real significance across the Council’s services; 

(c) the Cabinet’s major role will be in defining and reviewing the Council’s 

strategies and significant policies and in advising the Council on these 

matters and as to the Budget; 

(d) where decisions can be made at a lower level, then the Cabinet will ensure 

that this Scheme is designed, implemented and modified so as to achieve 

that purpose; 

(e) before accepting an item for the Cabinet’s agenda, the Leader or the 

relevant Cabinet Member, together with the Principal Member Services 

Officer, will satisfy themselves that the issue could not be otherwise 

properly dealt with under delegated powers; 

(f) where a matter arises which involves a range of detailed issues but is of 

such significance that it must be taken to the Cabinet – then the Leader or 

the relevant Cabinet Member responsible for that service must assess 

Page 34



whether the matter is of such urgency that it would not be practical for the 

advice to be first obtained from:- 

(i) the Scrutiny Committee, Audit Committee or the relevant Policy 

Development Group, or 

(ii) an officer, or 

(iii) a committee of the Cabinet itself; 

(g) so as to make sure that its strategic role is clearly identified and 

maintained, reports to the Cabinet will be written in such a form that 

ensures that:- 

 (i) unnecessary detail is excluded; 

 (ii) policy factors are clearly identified and analysed; 

 (iii) impact upon our corporate priorities is identified; 

(iv) all necessary consultation as to its content has taken place, and 

(v) the issues for decision by the Cabinet are justified as ones which 

could not reasonably be taken elsewhere. 

Page 35



 

SECTION 4 

Delegations To Cabinet Councillors And Officers 
7.1 Principle 1 

The overriding principle upon which the Council’s Delegation Scheme is founded 

is: 

All the Council’s statutory powers and duties in relation to the functions and 

activities (listed in the following table) are delegated to either the relevant Cabinet 

Member or to the Cabinet and from there, as shown, to the Management Team.  

Those listed include all such incidental and ancillary powers as are needed in 

order to carry out those functions together with all statutory powers delegated to 

either Cabinet Member or to the Cabinet by another local authority by virtue of an 

agreement under the Local Government Acts.  Such decisions of the Cabinet may, 

from time to time, be delegated to the relevant Cabinet Member subject at all 

times to the following provisos:- 

(a) the decision in question is not a “key decision”; 

(b) the power to make the decision has not previously been delegated to an 

officer: 

(c) the Cabinet Member has considered what consultation is necessary with 

regard to the proposed decision – including the need to consult with local 

Ward Members; 

(d) the proposed decision is compliant with the terms and conditions of the 

existing policy framework; 

(e) receipt and consideration of a written report containing a summary of the 

legal, financial and all other relevant implications arising from the 

proposed decision; 

(f) publication of the proposed decision in accordance with the Cabinet 

Procedure Rules referred to in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

7.2 The consequent powers to make all operational decisions as to the Council’s 

services are delegated to the Head of Paid Service, to the Monitoring Officer and 

to the Section 151 Officer (these are referred to as the “statutory officers”), 

together with the Heads of Services (who are together known as the “Management 

Team”), so long as the decision:- 

 (a) falls within the Council’s Policy Framework, and 

 (b) is otherwise within our approved policies, and 

(c) complies with the law, Financial and Contracts Procedure Rules, and other 

controls within this Constitution, and  

(d) is wholly in accordance with the budget for the current and following year, 

and 

(e) has not been disapproved by any of the “statutory officers”, and 

(f) has not been the subject of a request from the responsible Cabinet Member 

(if any) for the decision to be remitted to the Cabinet. 

7.3 Principle 2 

Page 36



Even where statutory power has been delegated, the delegatee still retains a 

discretion as to how the decision is to be taken.  Either:- 

(a) to deal with it him/herself; 

(b) to “remit” the decision – “upwards” (ie – in order to seek endorsement of a 

proposed decision) – in the case of “Cabinet matters” to the Cabinet, or in 

the case of a non-Cabinet matter to the Council or to the Planning 

Committee or to the Regulatory Committees; either Licensing or 

Regulatory; 

(c) to further delegate that power; 

(d) to consult others before exercising the power; 

(e) to take the decision jointly with other Cabinet Member or officers. 

7.4 Principle 3 

It is expected that, within these delegations, the officers will keep Cabinet 

Member fully briefed as to the services for which they are responsible and that 

they will consult with the relevant Cabinet Member on issues where either believe 

that this is needed.  Built upon this foundation, it is anticipated that this will mean 

that a number of otherwise delegated decisions will, in practice, be taken either by 

– or in consultation with – the Cabinet Member where he/she believes the matter 

to be one of a particular sensitivity or corporate significance. 

7.5 Principle 4 

So as to avoid any misunderstandings as to the exercise of these powers, each 

Cabinet Member and/or each member of the Management Team will adopt the 

following procedure:- 

(a) completion of the Decision Recording Form  at Appendix 3 of Part 3 of the 

Constitution by member of Management Team and/or other officer; 

 (b) consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member(s) and Officer(s); 

 (c) agree approach as to the scope for joint decisions; 

 (d) Cabinet Member to sign Decision Recording Form. 

7.6 Principle 5 

Any further general delegation of specific statutory powers by Management Team 

to an officer under Principle 2 shall be made in writing and shall record its extent 

and any limitations on the exercise of those powers. 

A copy of any such delegation shall be provided to The Monitoring Officer who, 

as “proper officer”, when so required has the duty formally to certify the existence 

and validity of those statutory powers in any legal proceedings or to sign formal 

agreements on the Council’s behalf giving effect to those decisions. 

7.7 Within these principles, the following table lists the range of functions for which 

all the Council’s statutory powers and duties are delegated to the Cabinet and then 

to the Management Team.  The table shows the current service portfolios each of 

which is held by a Cabinet Member as responsible for the overall policy direction 

for that service.  The table also shows the “lead officer” who is primarily 

responsible for the delivery of that service.  Any limits upon the delegations to the 

officers (other than those listed above) are shown here. 

 

Page 37



DELEGATION OF CABINET FUNCTIONS 

General Delegation to all Cabinet Members (subject to requirement that the matter is 

within the terms and reference of their respective Portfolio) 

8.0 Authority to issue press releases and deal with the press. 

 

8.1 Authority to approve proposals and schemes in respect of operational matters that are 

required to implement the policy framework. 

 

8.2 Authority to accept the lowest tender, provided it falls within the sum set by the 

Cabinet, if payment is to be made by the Council, or the highest tender, if the payment 

is to be received by the Council, such acceptance to be reported to the next meeting of 

the Cabinet where tenders or offers are invited by the Council for: 

 

(a) carrying out of works in accordance with the specification and/or bills of 

quantity (over the sum of £50K),  or, 

(b) purchase or sale of land, premises (over the sum of £100K), vehicles, 

equipment or machinery surplus to the Council’s needs (over the sum of 

£50K), or, 

(c) concessions in accordance with detailed particulars to accept a tender provided 

the accepted sum is within estimates. 

 

8.3 Authority to approve alteration and extensions to schedules/specifications to contract 

that do not have the effect of exceeding a previously approved budget sum, subject to 

legal advice. 

 

8.4 Authority to approve a maximum 5% “overspend” in respect of expenditure on works 

for a specified project within an approved budget. 

 

8.5 Authority to approve acquisitions, disposals and leases where in accordance with the 

policy framework and subject to relevant terms and conditions being negotiated by the 

relevant member of the Management Team. 

 

8.6 Authority to increase or alter fees and charges, subject to a statutory consultation 

and/or advertisement procedure where applicable. 

 

8.7 Dealing with human resources related issues (except those delegated to the Chief 

Executive), including organisational reviews but excluding additions to the approved 

establishment outside the approved budget (that would previously have been a matter 

for the Cabinet). 

 

8.8 Submitting comments on any consultation paper, report, information item, progress 

item or proposed or actual policy of any external body (for example, government 

policies, planning guidance, white and green papers, etc).  Such matters will be 

reported in the Weekly Information Sheet. 

 

8.9 Approving all grants within the approved budget but excluding those already 

delegated to officers. 

 

Page 38



8.10 All decisions necessary to enable the Council to implement the Council’s agreed 

Capital Programme. 

 

8.11 Appointments to external bodies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



APPENDIX 3 

MODEL DECISION RECORDING FORM 

 

DECISION: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION: 

 

 

 

 

 

DECISION BY: 

 

* Cabinet Member ……………………………………………………………………… 

 

* Officer …………………………………………………………………………………… 

* Member or Officer as appropriate 

 

CONSULTEES 

 

WARD  

 

HAS/HAVE WARD MEMBER(S) BEEN CONSULTED? YES*/NO (delete as appropriate) 

COMMENTS OF WARD MEMBER(S) 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



COMMENTS OF OTHER CONSULTEES 

 

 

 

 

DATE OF DECISION:  

  

EXEMPT INFORMATION? YES*/NO (delete as appropriate) 

*If yes to either question, state why: 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL, LEGAL & EQUALITY  ISSUES, IF ANY: 

 

 

 

 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/DOCUMENTS TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT:* 

 

 

* additional means additional to anything containing exempt information 

 

SIGNED 

………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

(Member or officer taking decision) 

DATE ………………………………………………………………………... (of decision) 

IMPORTANT NOTE:  This form shall be circulated to Members and also published on 

Sharepoint. 

Page 41



SECTION 5 

Scheme Of Delegation To Officers Only 
1 SUMMARY 

1.1 This section describes the Chief Officers and other principal officers and sets out 

the delegation of functions to them. 

1.2 The over-riding principle is that (with appropriate consultation requirements and 

exceptions) each Chief Officer will have delegated authority over all matters 

within their responsibility.   

2 THE PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COUNCIL 

2.1 Chief Officers 

 The Chief Officer of the Council is:- 

 (a) The Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)  

   

2.2 The Management Team 

The Management Team (MT) will comprise the Chief Executive,  the Heads of 

Communities and Governance (Monitoring Officer), Finance (Section 151 

Officer) Business Information Service, Planning and Regeneration Service, 

Housing and Property Services, Human Resources and Development and 

Customer First. 

The purposes of the MT are to ensure:- 

(a) the Council maintains an effective corporate identity and purpose; 

(b) the aims and objectives of corporate policies are achieved; 

(c) there is an effective form of communication and consultation between the 

Heads of Services; 

(d) there is effective monitoring of the Council’s corporate aims and 

performance; and 

(e) Ensure that the business of the Council is carried out in a proper manner 

2.3 “Proper Officers” and the other Statutory Officers 

The law requires the Council to appoint officers in respect of particular 

responsibilities.  The principal appointments are set out in Appendix 6. 

3 FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO INDIVIDUAL STATUTORY OFFICERS 

AND OTHER PRINCIPAL OFFICERS 

3.1 THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF PAID SERVICE) 

 Delegation 

All Council functions shall be the corporate strategic management responsibility 

of the Chief Executive but the processes and operational decisions shall be the 

responsibility of the appropriate Heads of Service. 

The Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service is authorised to exercise the 

following functions:- 

(a) Corporate Human Resources functions contained in Appendix 2 

Page 42



(b) Elections 

(c) All functions listed under the Heads of Service in 3.2 to  

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Chief Executive any matter:- 

(a) reserved to full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in Appendix 1 (functions 

which cannot be exercised by a delegated officer); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer pursuant to the 

requirements of statute; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Chief Executive. 

The Chief Executive must at all times comply with the Council’s Constitution and 

particularly the principles of decision making to be found in Article 12 of the 

Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Notes 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions 

highlighted at 5 below. 

 

3.2 THE HEAD OF COMMUNITIES AND GOVERNANCE (MONITORING 

OFFICER) 

 Delegation 

The Head of Communities and Governance shall be the Monitoring Officer and is 

authorised to exercise the following functions: 

(a) Economic Development 

(b) Community Development 

(c) Markets 

(d) Internal Audit 

(e) Risk Management 

(f) Performance Management 

(g) Strategic Corporate Planning 

(h) Safeguarding of Children and Vulnerable Adults 

(i)` Member Services 

(j) Legal Services 

 

(k) As Monitoring Officer, the Head of Communities and Governance is 

responsible for the legality of the Council’s processes and decisions, in 

particular:- 

Page 43



(i) to prepare, negotiate and execute documents and otherwise take 

any action required to give effect to all resolutions and/or decisions 

of the Council at committee or by a delegated officer; 

(ii) to institute, defend or act in respect of legal proceedings or other 

determinations involving the Council including power to settle and 

compromise such matters where necessary to give effect to a 

resolution and/or decision of the Council at committee or by a 

delegated officer or where necessary to protect the Council’s 

interest; 

(iii) to make and serve notices and other instruments where necessary to 

give effect to a resolution and/or decision of the Council at 

committee or delegated officer or where necessary to protect the 

Council’s interest; 

(iv) To commence proceedings in circumstances that require immediate 

action in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member. 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Communities and 

Governance any matter:- 

 (a) reserved to the full Council; 

 (b) delegated to a committee; 

 (c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless given delegated 

authority by the Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer pursuant to the  

  requirements of statute; 

(e) which is a function which for any reason cannot be exercised by the  

  Head of Communities and Governance. 

The Head of Communities and Governance must at all times comply with the 

Council’s Constitution and particularly the principles of decision making found in 

Article 12 of this Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

3.3 HEAD OF FINANCE (SECTION 151 OFFICER) 

 Delegation 

The Head of Finance as the Section 151 Officer is authorised to exercise the 

following functions:- 

(a)   Financial Services 

(b)   Housing and Council Tax Benefits 

Page 44



(c) Waste and Recycling Management 

(d) Environmental Enforcement 

. 

The Head of Finance shall be the Chief Financial Officer. 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Finance any matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of Finance. 

The Head of Finance must at all times comply with the Council’s Constitution and 

particularly the principles of decision making found in Article 12 of this 

Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

3.4 HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

Delegation 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration is authorised to exercise the following 

functions:- 

(a) Development Control 

(b) Forward Planning 

(c) Conservation 

(d) Building Control 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Planning and Regeneration 

any matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

Page 45



(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration must at all times comply with the 

Council’s Constitution and particularly the principles of decision making found in 

Article 12 of this Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

 Delegation specific to the Planning Function 

To exercise all the powers of the Council as Local Planning Authority (including the 

conduct of appeals and enquiries) under the Planning Acts, (unless expressly 

delegated to another officer) except where:- 

 

In the case of all Applications: 

 

1. In the opinion of the Head of Planning and Regeneration the application is of a 

significant controversial or sensitive nature; 

 

2. The application has been submitted by or on behalf of the Council; 

 

3. The application is from an Elected Member or Officer; 

 

4. The application is accompanied by an Environment Impact Assessment (EIA); 

 

5. The application is a significant or major departure and is recommended for 

approval; 

 

6. The Ward Member; Chairman or Vice-Chairman of Planning Committee requires 

that the Committee consider an application having given clear planning reasons; 

 

7. Applications will be delegated to the Head of Planning and Regeneration to refuse 

if Section 106 Agreements are not signed and completed within 8 or 13 week 

time-scale. 

  

In the case of re-negotiations on planning obligation (S106 Agreements and 

Undertakings); 

 

1.   Is submitted under Section 106 BA of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, if 

Committee considerations would be outside the date of determination delegated authority is 

given to the Head of Planning and Regeneration to agree amendments in consultation with 

the Head of Housing, the Cabinet Member for Housing and the Chair of Planning Committee 

 

Page 46



2.   In the case of renegotiations on another planning obligation issues the Ward Member or 

Chair or Vice Chair of Planning requires that the Committee consider the proposed changes 

having given clear planning reasons otherwise they will be delegated to the Head of Planning 

and Regeneration  

 

In the case of Enforcement: 

 

1. Formal enforcement action is proposed other than a Breach of Condition Notice or 

in the case where urgent action is required to commence enforcement proceedings, 

consisting of the service of a Temporary Stop Notice, Enforcement Notice, Stop 

Notice or commence Injunction proceedings.  These proceedings to only be 

instigated in consultation with one or more of the following:  Planning Chairman, 

Vice Chairman, Ward Member; 

 

2. Other than in consultation with the Legal Services Manager prosecution 

proceedings regarding any unauthorised advertising/fly posting. 

 

(Note:  Formal action does not include the service of a Planning Contravention Notice or 

Section 330 requisition for information)  

  

In the case of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (CIL) and associated 

enforcement: 

1.   Formal CIL enforcement action comprising CIL Stop Notice or in the case where urgent 

action is required to commence enforcement proceedings consisting of the service of a CIL 

Stop Notice or commence CIL Injunction proceedings.  These proceedings only to be 

instigated in consultation with one or more of the following: Planning Chairman, Vice 

Chairman, Ward Member. 

In the case of Conservation: 
 

1. It involves the designation of new, or amendment of existing Conservation Area 

boundaries; 

 

2. It requires the issue of repair and urgent work notices; 

 

3. It involves the submission of funding bids or schemes that have budgetary 

implications. 

  

In the case of the Local Plan: 
 

Local Plan proposals and policies with reasoned justification for publication and 

consultation or adoption at the following stages (other than where minor 

modifications and other minor changes are made). 

o Local Plan options consultation 

o Publication and consultation of the ‘submission’ Local Plan 

o  

o Local Plan Adoption 

 

In the case of Planning Policy: 

Page 47



 

1 Representations to strategic plans and policies at a larger than District scale are to 

be made 

 

2 Supplementary Planning Documents dealing with Mid Devon wide guidance and 

sites/areas for publication prior to consultation and for adoption (other than where 

minor modifications and other minor changes are made) 

 

(Not including updating contributions sought through S106 Agreements to reflect changes 

in the cost of provision of facilities.) 

 

Building Control And Safety: 
 

To exercise all the Council’s powers under the Building Act 1984 or regulations made there  

under except where:- 

 

In the case of charges 

 

o The annual review of charge results in increases greater than the rate of inflation. 

 

Other Provisions 
 

1. To authorise caravan rallies in accordance with the requirements of CS and C of DA 

1960. 

 

2. To make representations where appropriate and with the agreement of the Chairman 

and/or Vice Chairman of the Committee and Ward Member's (as appropriate) in 

respect of new Applications for Goods Vehicles Operators’ Licenses, or when a 

significant variation of an existing licence is proposed. 

 

3. To caution offender where there was evidence of a criminal offence and the 

 offender admitted the commission of the offence but the public interest did not  

 require a prosecution. 

 

3.5 HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND DEVELOPMENT 

 Delegation 

The Head of Human Resources and Development is authorised to exercise the 

following functions:- 

(a) Human Resources 

(b) Payroll  

(c) Learning and Development 

(b) Leisure 

(c) Licensing 

(d) Environmental Health 

(e) Private Sector Housing 

(f) Health & Safety 

Page 48



 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Human Resources and 

Development any matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of Human Resources and Development. 

The Head of Human Resources and Development must at all times comply with 

the Council’s Constitution and particularly the principles of decision making 

found in Article 12 of this Constitution together with further statements made 

below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

 

3.6 HEAD OF HOUSING AND PROPERTY SERVICES 

 Delegation 

The Head of Housing and Property Services is authorised to exercise the 

following functions:- 

(a) Housing Services 

(b) Property Services 

(c) Grounds Maintenance 

(d) Community Safety 

(e) Emergency Planning 

 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Housing and Property 

Services any matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

Page 49



(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of Housing and Property Services. 

The Head of Housing and Property Services must at all times comply with the 

Council’s Constitution and particularly the principles of decision making found in 

Article 12 of this Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

 

3.7 HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES 

 Delegation 

The Head of Customer Services is authorised to exercise the following functions:- 

(a) Customer Services 

(b) Communications 

(c) Revenues 

 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of Customer Services any 

matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of Customer Services. 

The Head of Customer Services must at all times comply with the Council’s 

Constitution and particularly the principles of decision making found in Article 12 

of this Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

Page 50



The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

3.8 HEAD OF BUSINESS INFORMATION SERVICES (BIS) 

 Delegation 

The Head of Business Information Services is authorised to exercise the following 

functions:- 

(a) ICT 

(b) Information Management  

(c) Gazetteer Management 

(d) Land Charges: 

All the powers of the Council in relation to Local Land Charges and the Local 

Land Charges Register. 

 

Exceptions and Conditions 

There is excepted from the delegation to the Head of BIS any matter:- 

(a) reserved to the full Council; 

(b) delegated to a committee; 

(c) which comprises or includes a function described in:- 

(i) appendix 1 (functions which cannot be exercised by a delegated 

officer); 

(ii) appendix 2 (corporate personnel functions unless authorised by the 

Chief Executive); 

(d) which is required to be discharged by another officer; 

(e) which is a function which for any other reason cannot be exercised by the 

Head of BIS. 

The Head of BIS must at all times comply with the Council’s Constitution and 

particularly the principles of decision making found in Article 12 of this 

Constitution together with further statements made below. 

Note 

The terms of reference of committees are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

The delegation is subject to and with the benefit of the general provisions at 5 

below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



4 FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO ALL HEADS OF SERVICE 

4.1 Delegation 

In addition to the functions specifically delegated by this part of the Constitution, 

together with those functions contained in the existing register of delegations 

attached at Appendix 5, all Heads of Service are authorised to exercise any of the 

Council’s functions in relation to the day to day management and delivery of the 

services for which they are responsible. 

4.2 Condition 

Each Head of Service Officer must comply with the principles of decision making 

set out in Article 12 of the Constitution and further set out within this part of the 

Constitution. 

5 GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO DELEGATIONS 

5.1 Further delegations by officers 

 Where:- 

 (a) a function has been delegated to an officer; or 

(b) an officer has been appointed to discharge the function of a proper or other 

statutory officer, that officer may in turn delegate that function to another 

officer or officers.  If they do so then:- 

(a) the delegation shall be recorded in writing and kept by the Monitoring 

Officer; and 

 (b) a decision taken pursuant to that delegation shall:- 

(i) be taken in the name of the officer to whom the function was 

originally delegated; and 

  (ii) have effect as if it had been taken by that officer. 

5.2 Additional delegation to officers to accord with responsibilities 

 In addition to any other delegation to an officer contained in this part of the 

Constitution, each officer is authorised to exercise any function as necessary for 

them to perform such of the duties set out in their job description as they are 

required to perform by the officer or officers responsible for their management. 

5.3 Additional delegation in particular circumstances 

 The Council, the Cabinet or a committee may (unless prevented by statute, the 

standing orders, the rules of procedure or the requirement of any subsisting 

Council policy) delegate to an officer the exercise of a function reserved to them. 

5.4 The discretion conferred by paragraph 5.3 above shall only be exercised where the 

Council, the Cabinet relevant committee or officer (as appropriate) consider it 

necessary in particular circumstances for the proper exercise of the relevant 

function. 

5.5 Exercise of delegated power by Council/committee 

 Notwithstanding a delegation to an officer of any of the Council’s functions:- 

(a) the Council, the Cabinet or a committee (where a matter is within the 

Cabinet or the committee’s terms of reference) may exercise the delegated 

function itself; and 

Page 52



(b) an officer to whom a function has been delegated may refer the matter for 

a decision to the Council, the Cabinet or a committee (where the matter is 

within the Cabinet or the committee’s terms of reference). 

5.6 The discretion conferred by paragraph 5.5 shall only be exercised where the 

Council, the Cabinet, relevant committee or officer (as appropriate) consider it 

necessary in particular circumstances for the proper exercise of the relevant 

function. 

5.7 Inability to Act:  Substitute Officers 

 If any officer:- 

 (a) (i) to whom a function has been delegated; or 

(ii) who has been appointed to discharge the function of a proper or 

other statutory officer, 

  is for any reason unable to act; or 

 (b) if the post of any such officer is vacant 

then (except where written provision has already been made), the Chief Executive 

in consultation with the  Head of Communities and Governance shall determine 

who shall act as substitute officer. 

 

6 FURTHER GUIDANCE ON PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 

6.1 Summary 

 The following paragraphs are to be read in conjunction with Article 12, Paragraph 

12.02 of this Constitution and Section 4 of this part of the Constitution. 

 This section provides direction and guidance to officers involved in the decision 

making process. 

 It sets out general requirements, describes the available decision making processes 

and provides criteria for choosing a process (where it is within an officer’s 

discretion).  It also provides a summary of the principal obligations and factors 

involved in operating the chosen process – including the publication of recording 

procedures which must be followed where a decision is taken by an officer in 

consultation with the relevant committee chairman. 

 

7 OFFICER DECISION MAKING 

7.1 Introduction 

 These paragraphs set out the essential requirements of officers and introduce some 

key issues relevant to the decision making process as a whole. 

 Section 8 provides the specific criteria for the choice of decision making process 

and Section 9 provides the protocol for taking decisions within the selection 

process. 

 In all decision making, officers must have regard to paragraph 4 of this part of the 

Constitution. 

7.2 Essential Requirements 

Page 53



In participating in the Council’s decision making process and in exercising their 

delegated functions, delegated officers must comply with:- 

 (a) The Council’s Rules of Procedure; 

 (b) The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules; 

(c) The Articles of the Constitution and further guidance contained in this 

part. 

7.3 Key Issues;  A General Context for Decision Making 

When making a decision delegated officers must consider:- 

(1)  Effect on Others; Public and Councillor Expectation 

(a) The effect on communities, businesses and individuals. 

(b) The need to ensure democratic accountability through responding to:- 

(i) the expectation of the public and councillors as to the process of 

decision making; and 

(ii) the anticipated interest of the public and councillors in the matter. 

(c) The effect of the matter on the Council’s relationship with Government, 

Government Agencies and other Local Authorities, private, not-for-profit 

voluntary sector partners or other external bodies. 

(d) The effect of the matter on other Council services and functions. 

(e) Whether the matter is likely to prove controversial or to involve a fine 

balance between possible alternative decisions. 

(2)  Budget 

(a) The approved budget and financial plan. 

(3) Policies and Plans 

(a) The approved policy framework, which is approved by Council annually.  

(b) Whether the matter would involve a new policy issue. 

(4) General Considerations 

 (a) General consequences 

 (b) Legal consequences 

 (c) Personnel consequences 

 (d) Human Rights consequences 

 (e) Environmental consequences 

 

8 SELECTING THE PROCESS OF DECISION MAKING 

8.1 Introduction 

The following paragraphs set out the available decision making processes and 

give direction and guidance on how selection should be made. 

Over time, the requirements of this guidance will become familiar to delegated 

officers.  In the meantime, the sequential questions listed below may help officers 

to decide which is the correct process:- 

Page 54



(a) Does the decision need to be taken by Full Council? 

It does if the subject matter of the decision falls within the terms of 

reference of the Council 

the nature of the decision is such that the delegated officer ought to refer to 

the Council. 

(b) If not, does the decision need to be taken by the Cabinet or a committee or 

individual Cabinet Member? 

  It does if: 

- the subject matter of the decision falls within the terms of reference 

of the Cabinet or the committee or individual Cabinet Member; 

- the nature of the decision is such that the delegated officer ought to 

refer to the Cabinet or committee or individual Cabinet Member. 

(c) If not, then the decision can be taken by the delegated officer appropriate 

to the subject matter of the decision. 

(d) but before taking the decision, the delegated officer may need to consult 

with a ward member(s), the Leader and/or relevant Cabinet Member(s), a 

committee chairman or the relevant Head of Service. 

The formal requirements of this guidance of this guidance are set out below. 

8.2 Decision Making Processes:  Options and Uses 

Table A below sets out the available decision making processes:- 

Column 1 describes each process 

Column 2 defines the circumstances in which each is to be used. 

Where a matter is before a delegated officer, the delegated officer must ensure that 

any decision in relation to that matter is taken in accordance with the requirements 

of Table A below. 

 

TABLE A -  DECISION MAKING PROCESSES AND THEIR USES 

Decision making process: To be used: 

Full Council If the decision would involve  any divergence from the 

current budget and/or policy framework. 

If the decision would involve determining a new policy 

of major corporate or strategic significance 

Note: 

 The decision will also be taken by full Council if: 

(a)  required by law; 

(b)  it is the approval of the budget and policy framework; 

(c)  it has been referred to full Council by the Cabinet or one 
of the committees of the Council. 

The Cabinet or a 

committee 

If the decision falls within the terms of reference of the 

Cabinet or a committee and (where relevant to the 

committee in question) has been referred to the 

Page 55



committee by a delegated officer. 

A delegated officer after 

consultation with one or 

more (as appropriate to 

the decision) of the 

following:- 

- the Cabinet 

 Member 

 

 

 

 

- If (a) the matter would have previously been 

 considered by a relevant policy committee and 

 (b) there are sufficient policy, resource or legal 

 issues and/or significant public/councillor 

 interest. 

-  a committee 

 chairman of a 

 relevant 

 committee  

- if (a) the matter would have previously 

 been considered by a  committee, and (b) 

 there are significant policy, resource or 

 legal issues and/or significant 

 public/councillor interest. 

- ward member(s) - if there are issues which would have  significant 

 impact on the community where it would have 

 previously been considered by the committee in 

 question. 

- Management 

Team 

 

- where there are significant cross-department 

 policy issues and/or there would be significant 

 cross-department effects on service delivery 

- one or more 

 Heads of Service 

-  where there would be significant effects on  the 

 policies and/or service delivery for a  Head of 

Service responsible 

 

8.3 Decision Making by the Cabinet and Committees 

The Cabinet takes a more strategic role and, therefore, operational issues will be 

determined at officer level. 

The few committees which will remain relatively unchanged are 

 Planning Committee, Licensing Committee and Regulatory Committee 

8.4 Reporting Matters to the Cabinet 

Where a decision in relation to a matter falls to be taken by a delegated officer, the 

delegated officer may elect to report on the matter (either generally or in relation 

to some aspect of it) by way of information to the Cabinet if the delegated officer 

considers this expedient having regard to the nature and significance of the matter, 

the terms of reference of the Cabinet and the provisions of this part of the 

Constitution. 

8.5 Involving Councillors:  Supplementing the Formal Process 

In addition to the formal requirements set out in Table A, delegated officers 

should ensure, through informal processes (including member briefing), that the 

Page 56



relevant ward councillors and all councillors, if appropriate are kept informed and 

given the opportunity to contribute. 

8.6 Disputes About The Selection of a Decision Making Process 

Except as provided by the following paragraph, any disagreement as to which of 

the decision making processes is appropriate to a matter shall be determined by 

the  Leader in consultation with the Head of Communities and Governance.  The 

decision of the Leader shall be final. 

Where the disagreement is as to whether a decision should or should not be made 

by the Leader, the disagreement shall be determined by Chairman and Vice 

Chairman of the Council in consultation with the Chief Executive.  The collective 

decision of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Council shall be final. 

 

9 INTERPRETATION 

9.1 Summary 

This section contains formal provisions designed to assist in the interpretation of 

this part of the constitution where there is doubt as to its meaning or application to 

a particular situation. 

9.2 General Interpretation Provisions 

A purposeful approach shall be taken in interpreting the delegations contained in 

this part of the Constitution so as to give effect to the Council’s intention that 

(subject to the requirements of the protocol) all functions of the Council shall be 

exercised by a delegated officer and to give effect to the intentions of the Council 

as set out in the Constitution generally. 

(a) Validity of Decisions 

The validity of a decision of a delegated officer shall not be questioned on the 

grounds that:- 

(i) It ought not to have been made by an officer because the issue is of such 

significance that it ought to have been referred to the Council or a 

committee, or because the officer ought to have consulted with one or 

more other officers and/or councillors; 

(ii) It ought to have been made by a different officer; or 

(iii) The provisions of the protocol contained in this part of the Constitution or 

of any other directions, rules or guidance made by the Council or an 

officer have not been wholly or mainly followed. 

although the validity of a decision may not be questioned it will be open to any 

Member of the Council to ask for scrutiny of the decision making process. 

(b) Unallocated Functions 

The exercise of any function which:- 

(i) shall be conferred on the Council after this part of the Constitution comes 

into effect; or 

(ii) for any other reason does not fall within the authority of any officer 

Page 57



shall be conferred (subject to the requirements of the Protocol) on such officers as 

shall be determined by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Head of 

Communities and Governance. 

(c) Functions Defined by Example 

Where:- 

(i) this part of the Constitution confers any power on any person;  and 

(ii) the description of the extent of the functions to which that power applies 

includes or refers to particular examples of the functions 

then 

(i) such examples shall be deemed to be included by way of illustration only 

and not limitation; and 

(ii) shall not prejudice the generality of the extent of those functions. 

(d) Determination of Interpretation Questions 

Any question as to the interpretation of this part of the Constitution (other than a 

disagreement to which the provisions of paragraph 8.6 above apply) shall be 

determined by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Head of Communities 

and Governance.  The Chief Executive’s decision shall be final. 

(e) Directions and Guidance 

If the Chief Executive considers it necessary or expedient, the Chief Executive 

may, in consultation with the Head of Communities and Governance, publish 

directions, rules or guidance relating to the interpretation and/or implementation 

of these officer delegations and committee terms of reference. 

 

Page 58



APPENDIX 1 

FUNCTIONS WHICH CANNOT BE EXERCISED BY A DELEGATED 

OFFICER 

1 Consideration of certain Ombudsman Reports 

 (S31A Local Government Act 1974) 

2 Consideration of reports of the Chief Finance Officer 

 (S115 Local Government Finance Act1988) 

3 Consideration of reports of the Head of Paid Service 

 (S4(5) Local Government and Housing Act 1989) 

4 Consideration of reports of the Monitoring Officer 

 (S5(5) Local Government and Housing Act 1989) 

5 Certain functions relating to non-domestic rating 

 (S139 Local Government Finance Act 1988) 

6 Certain functions relating to Council Tax 

 (S67 Local Government Finance Act 1992) 

7 Making bylaws 

 (S235 Local Government Act 1972) 

8 Promoting legislation 

 (S239 Local Government Act 1972) 

9 Reports of the External Auditor 

 (S160 Local Government Act 1972) 

Page 59



APPENDIX 2 

CORPORATE PERSONNEL FUNCTIONS 

The following functions will be exercised by the Chief Executive: 

(a) Approval of strategic personnel policies 

(b) Council wide pay and grading structure and the job evaluation process 

which underpins it 

(c) Re-organisation/restructuring within services which result in a re-

allocation of responsibilities and/or change in post titles 

(d) Heads of Servicer pay/gradings (determined by South West Employers and 

then ratified by Pay & grading Group) 

(e) Appointment of Heads of Service 

(f) Management competency and appraisal schemes 

(g) Changes in application of discretionary pension provisions for Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and Total Pensionable Service 

(TPS) 

(h) Approval of early retirements/added years (where award of added years 

exceeds standard council policy) 

(i) Approval of personnel, employee development and health and safety 

procedures/codes of practice 

(j) Approval of revisions to conditions of service for employees arising from 

enhanced local discretion, new employment legislation, EC directives etc 

(including variations to/departures from National Agreements/Conditions 

of Service) 

(k) Early retirements (except ill-health) within the Council’s Discretionary 

Pensions Policy 

(l) Trade union (corporate) facility time 

(m) Collective Dispute Hearings 

(n) Personnel/TUPE implications of the externalisation of functions 

(o) Approval of compensation in relation to such issues as the settlement of 

employment tribunal cases 

(p) Ring fencing for appointments 

(q) Appeals under the Job Evaluation Scheme (delegated to the Pay & 

Grading Group) 

(r) Payment of salaries above an employee’s substantive grade (delegated to 

the Pay & Grading Group) 

  

Note 

In accordance with the requirements set out above the functions at (a) to (o) above 

will be exercised following consultation with the Leader of the Council. 

Page 60



Onward Delegation 

The Corporate Personnel Functions are exercised by the Chief Executive and are 

highlighted in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

Attached is an authorisation from the Chief Executive who has determined that certain 

functions may be further delegated. 

 

Onward Delegation to Heads of Service 

1 Minor changes to staffing structures within services, including reallocation of 

responsibilities and/or change of post title.  Major reorganisation/restructuring of 

whole service units will require discussion at Corporate Management Team. 

2 Management competency and appraisals schemes. 

Involves a decision as to whether or not a relevant qualification is appropriate to a 

particular job and whether that can be highlighted as an ongoing training need in 

an appraisal scheme. 

3 Approval for trade union activities. 

4 Personnel/Tupe implications of any externalisation of functions. 

5 Approval of compensation in relation to such issues as settlement of employment 

tribunal cases. 

6 Ring fencing for appointments. 

7 Appeals under the Job Evaluation scheme. 

8 Payment of salary above the employee’s substantive grade. 

9 Appointment of staff. 

10 Appointment of temporary staff for contracts less than 12 months within budget 

11 Overtime payments. 

12 Incremental increase within grade. 

13 Bouquet/Merit payments (delegated to the Pay & Grading Group). 

14 Honorarium payments (delegated to the Pay & Grading Group) 

Finally, it should be remembered that decisions taken by Heads of Service are to be 

taken in the name of the Chief Executive and have the effect as if they had been taken 

by the Chief Executive.  It should be further remembered that a function carried out 

by the Head of Service in relation to the above mentioned delegations must be 

recorded in writing. 

Onward Delegation to the Pay and Grading Group 

The Pay and Grading Group consists of Management and Union representatives and 

deals with the Job Evaluation Scheme. 

Appeals under the Job Evaluation Scheme  

Payment of salaries above an employee’s substantive grade 

Bouquet/Merit payments 

Honorarium payments  

Page 61



DELEGATION TO OFFICERS THAT IS CONSEQUENTIAL UPON THE 

ADOPTION OF THE NEW CONSTITUTION AND THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR 

FUNCTIONS CONTAINED IN PART 3 

 

POWER OFFICER 

LAND TRANSACTIONS  

Authority to approve the terms on which land 

development project – other than schemes in the 

approved Capital Programme of other standing 

Committees – are undertaken (this to include 

industrial developments; town centre 

developments; major land assembly and 

development projects) 

Chief Executive  

Provision of valuation services for the Council  Chief Executive 

ELECTIONS  

Register of Electors Chief Executive 

Authority to adjust fees in respect of elections  Chief Executive 

FINANCE  

Authority to deal with purchase, maintenance 

and deployment of vehicles where the 

expenditure is not within an approved budget 

head 

Chief Executive  

HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES  

To deal with Renovation Grants including 

Disabled Facilities Grants and Minor Works 

Grants 

Head of Human Resources & 

Development 

Houses in Multiple Occupation Head of Human Resources & 

Development 

Private Sector Housing Head of Human Resources & 

Development 

Health Education Head of Human Resources & 

Development 

Pest Control Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

Food Protection Head of Human Resources 

& Development  

Control of Pollution (save for dog litter and litter Head of Human Resources 

Page 62



generally) & Development 

Control of Pollution (dog litter and litter 

generally) 

Head of Finance 

Water Quality Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

To deal with Infectious (communicable) and 

notifiable diseases 

Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

General health duties Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

To remove and dispose of abandoned vehicles 

 

Head of Finance 

To deal with issues relating to the Sunday 

Trading Act 1994 

Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

To deal with issues relating to Health and Safety 

at Work (where the Council is the enforcing 

authority) including such matters within the 

Council’s own buildings 

Head of Human Resources 

& Development  

Authority to deal with National Health Service 

issues 

Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

To take legal proceedings in respect of the sale 

or supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated 

entertainment and the provision of late night 

refreshment (currently regulated by the 

Licensing Act 2003 

Legal Services Manager  

and Licensing Officer 

The Health Act 2006 and associated regulations Head of Human Resources 

& Development 

HOUSING  

Authority to manage the housing stock including 

the replacement of existing Woolaway and Airey 

type houses and the updating of Cornish Unit 

properties 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Authority to maintain and improve the housing 

stock 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

‘Enabling role’ – to act as a catalyst between 

landowners, private sector builders, housing 

associations and other agencies to ensure the 

continued provision of affordable housing in the 

District 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Page 63



 The letting of properties and all matters incidental 

thereto including the collection of rents and recovery 

of possession 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

To deal with issues relating to the Central Alarm 

System (Piper Life Line) 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

To liaise with tenants including tenant 

participation 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Authority to act in respect of unlawful 

eviction/harassment 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Housing Advances 

 

Head of Finance 

Calculation of Rent Rebates (Housing Benefit) Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Sale of Council Houses Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Authority to Repurchase former Council Houses Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Management of Council Shops and Commercial 

Units 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Authority in consultation with the appropriate 

Cabinet Member to acquire sites and affordable 

housing units for the continued provision of 

affordable housing in the District 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

Authority in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member for Housing to apply for Homes and 

Communities Agency (HCA) or any other 

funding for the continued provision of affordable 

housing in the District 

Head of Housing and 

Property Services 

PLANNING  

To make representations in respect of new 

applications for Heavy Goods Vehicle Operators 

Licences or when a significant variation of an 

existing Licence is proposed 

Head of Planning and 

Regeneration in 

consultation with the ward 

member as appropriate 

EMPLOYEES  

Authority to deal with membership subscriptions 

and donations (other than recreation, leisure and 

arts) 

Chief Executive  

 

Page 64



APPENDIX 6 

PROPER OFFICERS 

Earlier local government legislation required local authorities to appoint officers with 

specified titles but the Local Government Act 1972, in the main, abolished the 

procedure.  This was in order to give local authorities freedom in deciding what 

officer posts to establish.  It follows that the officers responsible for certain statutory 

duties can no longer be identified by the post they occupy.  Consequently, the Act 

makes provision for certain officers to be designated by their employing authority as 

the “Proper Officer” to carry out particular functions under various Acts of 

Parliament. 

1 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 The Chief Executive is appointed  the Proper Officer in relation to:- 

(a) any reference to any enactment passed before or during the 1971-72 

session of Parliament other than the Local Government Act 1972 or in any 

instrument made before 26 October 1972 to the clerk of a Council or the 

town clerk of a borough which, by virtue of any provision of the said Act, 

is to be construed as a reference to the Proper Officer of the Council; 

(b) any reference in any local statutory provision to the clerk of the Council or 

similar which, by virtue of an order made under the Local Government Act 

1972 or the Local Government Act 1992 is to be construed as a reference 

to the Proper Officer of the Council; 

(c) the following provisions:-  

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government & Housing Act 1989  

Section 4 Head of Paid Service Chief 

Executive 

Local Government Act 1972 

Schedule 12 

Para 4(2)(b) 

Signature of Summons to 

Council Meetings 

Chief 

Executive 

Sections 83(1) – 

(4) 

Witness and receipt of 

declarations of acceptance of 

office 

Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the Head 

of 

Communities 

and 

Governance 

Section 84 Receipt of declarations of Chief 

Executive or, 

Page 65



resignation of office in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the   

Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance  

Section 88 (2) Convening Council to fill 

casual vacancy in the office of 

Chairman 

Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the  

Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance  

Section 89(1)(b) Receipt of notice of casual 

vacancy 

Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the  

Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance  

   

Sections 

100B(2), 

100B(7), 

100C(2) & 

100F(2) 

Distribution of summons and 

proceedings and release of 

documents to Councillors 

Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the  

Member 

Services 

Manager 

Schedule 12 

4(3) 

Receipt of notices regarding 

address to which summons to 

meeting are to be sent 

Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the  

Principal 

Member 

Page 66



Services 

Officer 

Schedule 14 

25(7) 

Certificate of resolutions Chief 

Executive or, 

in his absence 

or as 

instructed by 

him, the  

Principal 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

 

Local Government Act 1972  

Section 225(1) Deposit of Documents Legal  

Services 

Manager 

Section 229(5) Certification of photographic 

copies of documents 

Legal 

Services 

Manager 

Sections 234(1) 

& (2) 

Authentication of documents: 

 Financial, Rating, 

 Superannuation 

Legal 

Services 

Manager and 

S.151 Officer 

Sections 236(9) 

& (10) 

Service of Byelaws on other 

Authorities 

Legal 

Services 

Manager 

Section 238 Certification of Byelaws Legal 

Services 

Manager 

Local Government Act 1974  

Section 30(5) Notice of Local Government 

Ombudsman’s report 

Legal 

Services 

Manager 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 

1976 

 

Section 41 Evidence of resolutions and 

minutes of proceedings 

Legal 

Services 

Manager 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989  

Page 67



Section 5(1)(a) Monitoring Officer Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance  

Sections 15 & 

16 

Appointment of Members to 

Committees 

Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance  

Representation of the People Act 1983  

Sections 

8(1)(2)(a) 

Registration Officer Chief 

Executive  

Sections 28 & 

35 

Electoral Registration Officer 

and Returning Officer 

Chief 

Executive  

Issues in respect of Elections, etc. 

2 HEAD OF COMMUNITIES AND GOVERNANCE 

The Head of Communities and Governance is the Council’s statutory Monitoring 

Officer and is appointed as the proper Officer in relation to the following: 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989  

Section 5(7) Appointment of the Deputy 

Monitoring Officer 

Solicitor 

 

Localism Act 

2011 

Chapter 7, 

Section 29(1) 

 

 

Keeping record of declarations 

of pecuniary interest and 

notices 

 

 

Head of 

Communities 

and 

Governance 

(Monitoring 

Officer) or, in 

her absence or 

as instructed 

by her, the 

Deputy 

Monitoring 

Officer  

 

3 HEAD OF FINANCE 

The Head of Finance is the Council’s statutory Chief Financial Officer and is 

appointed the Proper Officer in relation to the following:- 

Page 68



(a) Any reference in any enactment passed before or during the 1971/72 

session of Parliament other than the Local Government Act 1972 or in any 

instrument made before 26 October 1972 to the Treasurer or a Treasurer of 

a Borough which by virtue of any provision of the said act is to be 

construed as a reference to the Proper Officer of the Council. 

(b) Any reference in any local statutory provision to the Treasurer of a 

specified Council which, by virtue of an order made under Section 254 of 

the Local Government Act 1972, or the Local Government Act 1992 is to 

be construed as a reference to the Proper Officer of the Council. 

(c) Provisions of the Local Government Act 1972, as follows:- 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government Act 1972  

Section 115 (2) Receipt of money due from 

officers 

S. 151 Officer 

or Chief 

Executive 

Section 146 (1) 

(a) & (b) 

Declarations and certificates 

with regard to securities 

S.151 Officer 

or Chief 

Executive 

Section 234(1) 

& (2) 

Authentication of documents: 

 Financial, Rating 

 Superannuation 

S.151 Officer 

or Chief 

Executive 

Local Government Finance Act 1988  

Section 114 Reporting on decisions or 

actions which may result in 

unlawful expenditure or loss 

to the authority 

S. 151 Officer 

or Finance 

Manager 

 

4 HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration is appointed the Proper Officer in relation 

to:- 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government Act 1972  

Section 234(1) 

& (2) 

Authentication of documents: 

Dangerous Structure Notices 

Certification of Local Plans 

Head of 

Planning and 

Regeneration 

Page 69



The Head of Planning and Regeneration is appointed the Proper Officer in respect of 

powers contained in Section 78 of the Building Act 1984, ie, to act as “the surveyor” 

empowered to take and authorise emergency action in respect of damage and 

dangerous buildings, walls, etc, and to order the demolition of buildings rendered 

dangerous by fire damage, without prior authorisation of the Council. 

 

5 HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND DEVELOPMENT 

The Head of Human Resources and Development is appointed Proper Officer in 

relation to Section 47 National Assistance 1948 and Section 1 National Assistance 

(Amendment) Act 1951. 

 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government Act 1972  

Sections 234(1) 

& (2) 

Authentication of documents: 

- Notifiable Diseases and 

 Food Poisoning 

Head of 

Human 

Resources 

and 

Development 

 

6 HEAD OF HOUSING AND PROPERTY SERVICES 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government Act 1972  

Sections 234(1) 

& (2) 

Authentication of documents: 

- Letting of Garages 

Head of 

Housing and 

Property 

Services 

 

 

7 HEAD OF BUSINESS INFORMATION SERVICES 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Data Protection Act  

1998 Data Protection Officer  Head of 

Business 

Information 

Services 

 

 

Page 70



8 MISCELLANEOUS 

Statute Role/Function/Responsibility Proper 

Officer 

Local Government Act 1972  

Section 112 Duties to be carried out by a 

Proper Officer 

The Officer 

responsible 

for carrying 

out the duty 

9 DECISION MAKING 

The report author of any report to be considered by the Council or a Committee / Sub-

Committee thereof is appointed as Proper Officer under the Local Government Act 

1972 in relation to:- 

(a) the identification of and compilation of lists of background papers to 

reports; 

(b) the identification of confidential documentation. 

 

10 OTHER 

The Constitution and / or primary and secondary legislation associated with the 

Constitution and policy making functions and decision-making contain a range of 

Proper Officer posts.  Except where prescribed in this part of the Constitution, those 

responsibilities are set out in the remainder of the Constitution, eg  Council Procedure 

Rules.  In the absence of any identified post holder, the Proper Officer shall be the 

Chief Executive. 

 

 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 29 April 2015
	Written Questions to Council 29 April 2015

	8 Appointment to Outside Bodies 2015/16
	9 Scheme of Delegations

